CITY OF RICHARDSON
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES - DECEMBER 15, 2015

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on December 15, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall in the
Council Chambers, 411 W. Arapaho Road, Richardson, Texas.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Barry Hand, Chairman
Gerald Bright, Vice Chair
Janet DePuy, Commissioner
Marilyn Frederick, Commissioner
Thomas Maxwell, Commissioner
Randy Roland, Commissioner
Ron Taylor, Alternate

MEMBERS ABSENT: Bill Ferrell, Commissioner
Stephen Springs, Alternate

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Sam Chavez, Assistant Director — Dev. Svcs. — Planning
Kathy Welp, Executive Secretary

BRIEFING SESSION

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff regarding
staff reports and agenda items. No action was taken.

MINUTES
1. Approval of the minutes of the regular business meeting of December 1, 2015.

Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to approve the minutes as presented; second
by Commissioner Frederick. Motion approved 7-0.

CONSENT AGENDA
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Plan Commission
and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion of these
items unless desired, in which case any item(s) may be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate
consideration.

2. Site & Landscape Plans — RISD Operations Center: A request for approval of site and
landscape plans for the development of a 99,940 square foot operations center, which includes a
2-story office, single-story warehouse, transportation shop, storage, and fuel station. The 14.6
acre site is located between Abrams Road and S. Greenville Avenue, north of Walnut Street.

Motion: Commissioner DePuy made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented;
second by Commissioner Maxwell. Motion approved 7-0.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-12-15 Minutes.doc



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

December 15, 2015

PUBLIC HEARING

3. Zoning File 15-31 — Self-Service Warehouse: Consider and take necessary action on a request
for approval for a change in zoning from LR-M(2) Local Retail to PD Planned Development to
accommodate a self-service warehouse with a two-story area and to accommodate a caretaker’s
quarters. The 5.3 acres is located at the northeast quadrant of Campbell Road and Plano Road.

Mr. Shacklett advised the applicant was requesting a change in zoning for the property at the
northeast quadrant of Plano and Campbell Roads to accommodate a self-service warehouse
along with a two-story addition for an on premise caretaker’s residence. He added the 5.3 acre
site contained two buildings with approximately 72,000 square feet and was located directly
behind another retail shopping center.

Mr. Shacklett reviewed the history of the property, the adjacent single family area and retail
center noting the properties were initially zoned in 1978 with a zoning change in 1985 for the
two retail centers. He pointed out that large portions of the property in question were not visible
from street frontages (except for small sections along Plano and Campbell Roads), which has
caused problems with leasing the property and leaving the center mostly vacant.

In 2013, Mr. Shacklett noted a similar zoning request was considered and recommended for
approved by the Commission, but was canceled by the applicant prior to going to the City
Council due to opposition from the adjacent single-family neighborhood. He added that the
current proposal had received one letter in support, twelve (12) letters in opposition, and a
petition in opposition representing eighteen (18) properties within the 200-foot notification area.

Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by highlighting some of the changes being proposed
by the applicant:

e Storage units would only be accessed from an internal hallway;

e Control gates would be built at both ends of the property with the gate at Campbell Road
as an exit only;

e Exterior would be lit by downward pointing wall-pack lighting;

e Exterior of the building and masonry wall would be painted;

e Landscaping would be updated with screening trees planted along the masonry wall
adjoining the single-family residences; and

e Signs on the back of the building (facing the single family homes) would be limited to
directional signage only.

Commissioner Roland asked if there was any prohibition on care taker units at self-storage
facilities.

Mr. Shacklett replied there had traditionally been restrictions on caretaker units at self-storage

facilities and he was not sure why, but the applicant was requesting the allowance to provide on-
site management and additional security.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-11-17 CPCMinutes.doc 2



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

December 15, 2015

Mr. Chavez added the applicant would also have to meet all residential and non-residential
building codes for the caretaker’s unit as well as the storage buildings.

Commissioner Roland asked to confirm the zoning for Calloway’s Nursery and what would be
allowed if the nursery was to close.

Mr. Shacklett confirmed it was zoned residential in late 1960’s or early 1970’s with a Special
Permit to allow a retail nursery and if the nursery decided to close a daycare or religious facility
could locate there by right.

Commissioner Maxwell asked if the requested Special Permit required the applicant to build a
caretaker’s unit or was it optional.

Mr. Shacklett replied that a caretaker’s unit was shown on the concept plan, but it was not
required; however, the Commission could add that as a special condition.

Commissioner DePuy noted that some of the letters in opposition expressed concern that if the
request was approved it would open the door to a “proliferation” of storage units in the City and
she wanted to confirm that a Special Permit would be required of any storage facility.

Mr. Shacklett replied that a zoning approval (i.e., Planned Development or Special Permit)
would be required for any new self-storage facility.

Vice Chair Bright asked how long the current buildings had been vacant.

Mr. Shacklett said there had been varying levels of vacancy over the last several years and
suggested the applicant would be better suited to answer that question.

No other questions were asked of staff and Chairman Hand opened the public hearing.

Mr. Maxwell Fisher, Masterplan, 900 Jackson Street, Dallas, Texas, representing the owner,
highlighted some of the challenges associated with the site:

Limited view shed, building positioned directly behind a retail center;
Property sits three to four feet below street grade;

Competing office space is better situated; and

General retail contraction.

Mr. Fisher explained the old style of self-storage warehouses with chain link fences and roll up
doors was not what they were proposing and newer facilities were being positioned closer to
neighborhoods and designed to be more neighborhood friendly. In addition, Fisher cited
surveys done by the Self-Storage Association noting customers were asking for storage facilities
closer to home/business locations and how the current supply was not meeting the demand.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-11-17 CPCMinutes.doc 3



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

December 15, 2015

Mr. Fisher stated they had attended the Owens Park Neighborhood Association board meeting
on October 19, 2015 and the association suggested using down lighting around the building,
painting the perimeter screening wall, adding additional trees for screening, and adding retail on
the Plano Road side of the property.

Mr. Fisher concluded his presentation by giving information contradicting the common
misconceptions regarding storage facilities such as crime generators, increased traffic noise,
property decline, and adverse effect on property values. He added the individual storage units
would be climate controlled and the hours of operation would be from 6:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m.

Vice Chair Bright asked about vacancy rate of the property in the last few years and the efforts
to bring businesses to the site.

Mr. Fisher replied that over the last few years there had been five broker teams that tried to
market the property for medical office and retail but to no avail.

Commissioner DePuy asked if the neighborhood had requested the onsite care taker or was that
part of the applicant’s request.

Mr. Fisher said it was a combination of both and he was not aware of any opposition.

Commissioner Roland asked if the site was not considered Class “A” office space what
classification would it be and if both sides of the screening wall would be painted.

Mr. Fisher replied he did not know what classification it would be, but with the visibility
problems, lack of technology and its age, it would not be considered as Class “A” property.

Regarding the screening wall, Mr. Fisher said they had agreed to paint the residential side of the
wall and would be happy to pain the side facing their property if necessary.

Commissioner Frederick asked if there had been increased interest in the property with the
development of the State Farm and Raytheon campuses.

Mr. Fisher acknowledged people were coming to the area, but the property in question was a
different class and age; however, the influx of people to the area would help the self-storage
facility with a higher demand for storage.

Commissioner Frederick asked the applicant who would be the target market if the lot was
scraped.

Mr. Fisher said that even if scraped, the majority of the property was more than 200 feet away
from the street in addition to sitting below grade. He added that the only interest received over
the last few years was from an Asian market group and the owners did not feel it was the best
use of the property.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-11-17 CPCMinutes.doc 4



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

December 15, 2015

In addition to Mr. Fisher, the Commission received three cards in favor of the request from
those in the audience who did not wish to speak:

— Ms. Barbara Fullerton, 1607 Woodoak Drive, Richardson, Texas
— Ms. Misty Meador, 1509 Woodoak Drive, Richardson, Texas
— Ms. Katherine Cargile, 1605 Woodoak Drive, Richardson, Texas

Chairman Hand called for any comments in opposition.

The following is a list of individuals who spoke in opposition and those who expressed their
opposition in writing. The speakers were concerned with lack of improvement/maintenance and
upkeep by future tenant or business, decline of surrounding businesses (i.e., Arapaho Road
storage), two story building, light pollution, vehicle rentals, access to site for fire department,
devaluing of adjacent property/homes, attracting criminal activity, excessive noise, and hours of
operation. A suggestion was also made to change the site to townhomes or condominiums use.

— Mr. Wil Riley, 1707 Valcourt Drive, Richardson, Texas (speaker)

— Ms. Evelyn Roberson, 2217 Victoria Lane, Richardson, Texas (speaker)
— Ms. Linda Lewis, 2010 Oakwood, Richardson, Texas (speaker)

— Mr. James Lewis, 2010 Oakwood, Richardson, Texas (card)

— Mr. James Arnett, 2109 Sky Ridge Creek, Richardson, Texas (card)

— Mr. David Lawson, 1809 Campbell Trail, Richardson, Texas (card)

— Ms. Jeanie Lawson, 1809 Campbell Trail, Richardson, Texas (card)

— Mr. David Roffino, 2103 Briarwick Ct., Richardson, Texas (card)

— Ms. Andrea Suk, 17097 Valcourt Drive, Richardson, Texas (card)

Chairman Hand asked the applicant if he wanted to rebut or answer any of the concerns in
opposition.

Mr. Fisher stated that improvements to the site were based on having appreciable tenants and
without tenants the money for those improvements was not available. He also addressed some
of the other concerns expressed by those in opposition:

e Residential - buildings would face the back of a retail center and lacked space for
parking or driveways.

e Two stories — two story unit was purposefully placed adjacent to Calloway’s Nursery
instead of being next to the single family neighborhood.

e Light and noise pollution — typically retail or office will produce more light pollution via
their buildings and parking lots, whereas the current proposal will have downward facing
wall-pack lights and limited hours of operation. In addition, entry to the property will be
on the west side of the building away from the adjacent residential properties.

e OQutside storage — zoning prohibits outside storage and no requests will be made for
outside vehicle storage or rental.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-11-17 CPCMinutes.doc 5



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

December 15, 2015

e Access to site for fire department — the fire and police departments will have access to
the facility just as it does with any other storage business.

e Criminal activity — self-storage business, especially those with interior hallways, are one
of the lowest crime generators per the Dallas Police Department. In addition, tenants
will be required to pass a background check, there will be on premise management 24/7,
and security cameras will be in use throughout the property.

e Devaluing property — Arapaho Road storage facility lost the anchor business and the
retail center suffered a decline years before storage facility opened up.

Mr. Fisher concluded his rebuttal comments by noting that World Class Capital, the owner of
the property, were well versed in retail and office as well as self-storage and felt the proposed
self-storage facility would make the best use of the property as opposed to leaving it vacant.

Commissioner Roland asked if the applicant would agree to not allowing recreational vehicle or
boat parking on the site. He also wanted to confirm that 18-wheelers or commercial vehicles
would not be coming to the site at all hours of the day or night.

Mr. Fisher confirmed that outside storage of vehicle would not be allowed and acknowledged
the common misconception that large scale storage would be available. He pointed out that

interior hallways would only allow for storage from local homeowners and small businesses.

Commissioner Roland asked how the neighborhood could feel comfortable with the fact the
business would not decline in appearance over the years.

Mr. Fisher replied it was very difficult for an owner to put money into a property if the property
was not generating any income, such as the current state of the property and that that self-
storage businesses were good income generators so money would be available for maintenance.
Commissioner Taylor asked to confirm the type of signs that will be used on the property.

Mr. Fisher said there would be signs for the retail businesses along Plano and Campbell Roads
as well as a sign for the storage business on Plano Road. The only other signs would be
directional signs along the building inside the gated area.

Vice Chair Bright wanted to confirm how police and fire would gain access to the property.

Mr. Fisher replied the police and fire would gain entry to the property via a knox box system.

Chairman Hand asked if all storage businesses were gated and Mr. Fisher said it was usually the
norm and very few are without gates.

Commissioner Frederick asked if there were any restrictions currently on the office building
preventing anyone from coming or going at any time of the day.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-11-17 CPCMinutes.doc 6



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

December 15, 2015

Mr. Fisher replied that as an office building it would allow access at any time; however, with the
proposed changes of gated entry, checking the background of tenants and security cameras
throughout, the site would be much more secure than it is today.

With no further comments or questions in favor or opposed Chairman Hand closed the public
hearing.

Commissioner Frederick asked staff to explain the type of restrictions put in place by the
proposed Special Permit, especially as it pertained to vehicle rentals.

Mr. Shacklett replied there were very specific instances when motor vehicles rentals (U-Haul)
would be allowed and that could only happen in a C-M Commercial District. He added that if
the Commission was concerned about vehicle rentals or outdoor storage of vehicles, a
prohibition could be added to the special conditions when the motion was made.

Chairman Hand stated the Commission was and had been very active in addressing areas of
decline in the City and because of that work, and the work of the City staff, the City was
actively influencing the quality of development within the city.

Commissioner DePuy disagreed that the property values would be adversely affected by the
proposed self-storage business and suggested the upgrades to the building and business would
enhance the values as opposed to an empty office building. She also thought having townhomes
would not be a viable use for a very awkward piece of property.

Commissioner Roland outlined several pluses regarding the proposed project: contact made with
adjacent neighborhood association; new canopy trees to screen the side adjacent to single family
residences; updating/painting building and perimeter masonry wall; easy on-site storage for
local residents; on-site caretaker increased security; increase in tax dollars for the city; and a
viable use versus a vacant building.

On the minus side, Mr. Roland said that the gates would block the traffic flow condemning the
project to remain as a self-storage facility as opposed to reverting to some other use. However,
he felt the pluses outweighed the minuses and he said he would support the request.

Commissioner Frederick stated that she would be voting in favor of the request and pointed out
that she and Ms. DePuy were both real estate brokers and felt that having a working business
adjacent to a residential area was more of a positive than a negative.

Commissioner Maxwell said he was also in favor of the request and suggested if anyone was
concerned about the maintenance of the facility they should call the Community Services
Department of the City to check for code violations. He also addressed a concern from the
audience about what would prevent the applicant from returning and asking for changes to the
Special Permit and noted that any request for a change would have to go through another public
hearing before the Commission and City Council before it could be approved.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-11-17 CPCMinutes.doc 7



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

December 15, 2015

Chairman Hand thanked the audience for coming out and stating their concerns and reminded
those in attendance that the Commission was tasked with doing a technical review of any
requests before making a recommendation to the City Council. Once an item was presented to
City Council, there would be another public hearing where citizens could discuss their concerns.

Mr. Hand added that he was on record as voting against most self-storage requests, but noted he
had voted in favor of a previous request because of the problems faced by the property. He also
thought the current proposal was much better than the previous submittal and would be voting in
favor of the proposal.

Motion: Vice Chair Bright made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 15-31 as
presented with additional conditions prohibiting outdoor storage of vehicles and
vehicles for rent; second by Commissioner DePuy.

Commissioner Maxwell asked if Mr. Bright would amend his motion to require a
caretaker’s residence as opposed to leaving it as optional.

Mr. Shacklett noted the caretaker’s residence was covered under special condition
three (3): “One (1) on-premises caretaker’s residence as an accessory use of the self-
service warehouse.” However, if the Commission wanted to make it a requirement
they could add that to the motion.

Vice Chair Bright so amended his motion to require the caretaker’s residence and
Commissioner DePuy gave the second.

Motion approved 7-0.
ADJOURN

With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Hand adjourned the regular
business meeting at 8:40 p.m.

Barry Hand, Chairman
City Plan Commission

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-11-17 CPCMinutes.doc 8



